
 

Individuals addressing the Council are asked to step to the microphone and clearly state their name and 
address before speaking. In accordance with ADA guidelines, if you need special accommodations to 

attend any city meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s Office at 417-732-3101 at least three days prior to 
the scheduled meeting. All meetings are recorded for public viewing. 

Eric Franklin, Mayor 
Eric Gerke, Ward I 

Garry Wilson, Ward II 
Christopher Updike, Ward III 

Justin Neal, Ward IV 

Justin Shaw, Ward I 
Darran Campbell, Ward II 

Brian Fields, Ward III 
Daniel Harter, Ward IV 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
City Council Regular Session 

Municipal Court Building, 540 Civic Blvd  

October 01, 2024 at 6:00 PM 

Call Meeting to Order 

Opening Prayer 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Citizen Participation 

Consent Agenda 

1. Approve the September 10, 2024 City Council Minutes. 
2. 24-R-43 A Resolution of the City Council Approving the Dates for Meetings of the City Council, 

Planning and Zoning Commission, and Board of Adjustment During Calendar Year 2025. 

Board, Commission, and Committee Schedule 
Board of Adjustment Meeting  October 3, 2024-Cancelled 
Planning & Zoning Meeting  October 7, 2024 
City Council Workshop   October 8, 2024  
City Council Meeting   October 15, 2024 
Planning & Zoning Meeting  November 4, 2024 
City Council Meeting   November 5, 2024 

Old Business and Tabled Items 

3. 24-55 An Ordinance of the City Council Authorizing Execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement 

with the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission for the City’s Acceptance of Certain 

Grant Funds and Contribution of Local Match Funding for Public Improvements Included in the 

Route MM Realignment Project (Greene County Job Number 8S0836D). 

4. 24-56 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Execution of a Developer Agreement with 

Empire District Electric Company for Parking Lot Access for the Future Morris Park on West State 

Highway 174.  

Other Business (Resolutions) 

5. 24-R-44 A Resolution of the City Council Awarding the Bid for the Shuyler Creek Trail Extension to 

JD Wallace Contracting, LLC. 

Reports from Staff 

Executive Session:  No further action, other than announcing adjournment by the Mayor, shall take place 
after an Executive Session that is scheduled as the last matter on the Agenda unless otherwise stated on 
the Agenda or as allowed per RSMo. 610.02. 

1. RSMo 610.021.1 Pending and/or potential litigation. Closed session. Closed vote. Closed record.  

Adjournment 
 
 

1



 

 
1 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a r  S e s s i o n ,  S e p t e m b e r  1 0 ,  2 0 2 4  

Eric Franklin, Mayor 
Eric Gerke, Ward I 

Garry Wilson, Ward II 
Christopher Updike, Ward III 

Justin Neal, Ward IV 

Justin Shaw, Ward I 
Darran Campbell, Ward II 

Brian Fields, Ward III 
Daniel Harter, Ward IV 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
City Council Regular Session 

Municipal Court Building, 540 Civic Blvd  

September 10, 2024 at 6:00 PM 

Call Meeting to Order 

The regular session meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Greene County, Missouri, was 
called to order by Mayor Eric Franklin at 6:00 p.m. Council Members present included Justin Shaw, Brian 
Fields, Justin Neal, Eric Gerke, Darran Campbell, Chris Updike, and Daniel Harter. Others in attendance 
were: Chief of Staff Lisa Addington, City Attorney Megan McCullough, Fire Chief Duane Compton,  City 
Clerk Laura Burbridge, Chief Financial Officer Bob Ford, Community Development Director Karen Haynes, 
Data and Security Supervisor Michael Sallee, Police Chief Brian Sells, Police Lieutenant Zach Richards,  
Engineer Angel Falig, Engineer Stefani Fitzpatrick-Duncan, and Parks and Recreation Director Kris Parks. 

Opening Prayer 

Opening prayer was led by Mayor Eric Franklin. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Eric Franklin. 

Citizen Participation 

Mayor Franklin opened citizen participation at 6:00 p.m.  Kevin Cash-126 E. Hadley-spoke about how 
forward thinking the City of Republic is and read a post regarding The Rush and disc golf.  Mayor Franklin 
closed citizen participation at 6:06 p.m. 

Consent Agenda 

Motion was made by Council Member Harter and seconded by Council Member Neal to approve the 
consent agenda. The vote was 7 Aye-Campbell, Fields, Gerke, Harter, Neal, Shaw, and Updike. 0 
Nay.  Motion Carried. 

1. Approve the August 27, 2024 City Council Minutes. 

2. Approve the Vendor List. 

3. As per RSMo. 109.230(4), City records that are on file in the City Clerk’s office and have met the 
retention schedule will be destroyed in compliance with the guidelines established by the 
Secretary of State’s office. 

4. 24-R-37 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the City’s Return of Contributed Funds to 

Greene County due to Postponement of the Highway MM Expansion/Cost-Share Project.  

Board, Commission, and Committee Schedule 
City Council Workshop   September 24, 2024 at 11:00 
City Council Meeting   October 1, 2024 
Board of Adjustment Meeting  October 3, 2024 
Planning & Zoning Meeting  October 7, 2024 
City Council Meeting   October 15, 2024 

 

 

2

Item 1.



 

 
 2 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a r  S e s s i o n ,  S e p t e m b e r  1 0 ,  2 0 2 4  

Old Business and Tabled Items 

5. 24-52 An Ordinance of the City Council Authorizing the City Administrator to Enter into a 

Developer Agreement with Wal-Mart Stores East, LP for the Construction of Public Water Main 

Improvements at Lot 7 of the Hankins Farm Planned Development District. 

Motion was made by Council Member Neal and seconded by Council Member Harter to have the 
second reading of Bill 24-52 by title only. The vote was 7 Aye-Campbell, Fields, Gerke, Harter, 
Neal, Shaw, and Updike. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  Karen Haynes was available for questions of 
Council.  Council Member Fields motioned for the passage of Bill 24-52.  Council Member Harter 
seconded.  A roll call vote was taken digitally.  The vote was 7 Aye-Campbell, Fields, Gerke, Harter, 
Neal, Shaw, and Updike.  Motion Carried. 

New Business (First Reading of Ordinances) 

6. 24-55 An Ordinance of the City Council Authorizing Execution of an Intergovernmental 

Agreement with the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission for the City’s 

Acceptance of Certain Grant Funds and Contribution of Local Match Funding for Public 

Improvements Included in the Route MM Realignment Project (Greene County Job Number 

8S0836D). 

Motion was made by Council Member Harter and seconded by Council Member Neal to have the 
first reading of Bill 24-55 by title only. The vote was 7 Aye-Campbell, Fields, Gerke, Harter, Neal, 
Shaw, and Updike. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  Karen Haynes gave an overview of the bill.  Mayor 
Franklin reminded Council that this is a first read and to get with staff prior to the next meeting 
with any questions. 

7. 24-56 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Execution of a Developer Agreement with 

Empire District Electric Company for Parking Lot Access for the Future Morris Park on West State 

Highway 174.  

Motion was made by Council Member Harter and seconded by Council Member Neal to have the 
first reading of Bill 24-56 by title only. The vote was 7 Aye-Campbell, Fields, Gerke, Harter, Neal, 
Shaw, and Updike. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  Stefani Fitzpatrick-Duncan gave an overview of the 
bill.  Mayor Franklin reminded Council that this is a first read and to get with staff prior to the next 
meeting with any questions. 

Other Business (Resolutions) 

8. 24-R-38 A Resolution of the City Council Awarding the Bid for Stormwater Materials for the Iron 

Grain Lane Project to Scurlock Industries of Springfield, Inc. 

Motion was made by Council Member Neal and seconded by Council Member Harter to take up 
Resolution 24-R-38.  Angel Falig presented the Resolution and answered questions of 
Council.  The vote was 7 Aye-Campbell, Fields, Gerke, Harter, Neal, Shaw, and Updike.  0 
Nay.  Motion Carried. 

9. 24-R-39 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing Supplemental Agreement No. 3 for the 

Shuyler Creek Trail Project (STBG-6900 (813)) with Olsson Engineering for Additional 

Engineering Services in the Amount of $64,113.85. 

Motion was made by Council Member Campbell and seconded by Council Member Neal to take 
up Resolution 24-R-39.  Karen Haynes presented the Resolution and answered questions of 

3

Item 1.



 

 
 3 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a r  S e s s i o n ,  S e p t e m b e r  1 0 ,  2 0 2 4  

Council.  The vote was 7 Aye-Campbell, Fields, Gerke, Harter, Neal, Shaw, and Updike.  0 
Nay.  Motion Carried. 

10. 24-R-40 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing Execution of a Task Order for Engineer-

Owner Agreement for Task Order No. 16 With Burns and McDonnell Engineering Co., Inc. 

Relating to Phase One of the Water Master Plan Update. 

Motion was made by Council Member Neal and seconded by Council Member Harter to take up 
Resolution 24-R-40.  Karen Haynes presented the Resolution and answered questions of 
Council.  The vote was 7 Aye-Campbell, Fields, Gerke, Harter, Neal, Shaw, and Updike.  0 
Nay.  Motion Carried. 

11. 24-R-41 A Resolution of the City Council Designating Two Economic Development Focus Areas 

for the Missouri Department of Transportation’s Statewide Transportation Improvement 

Program Prioritization. 

Motion was made by Council Member Harter and seconded by Council Member Neal to take up 
Resolution 24-R-41.  Karen Haynes presented the Resolution and answered questions of 
Council.  The vote was 7 Aye-Campbell, Fields, Gerke, Harter, Neal, Shaw, and Updike.  0 
Nay.  Motion Carried. 

12. 24-R-42 A Resolution of The City Council Awarding the Bid for Supply of Water Main Materials 
for Lot 7 of the Hankins Farm Planned Development District to Schulte Supply, Inc. 

Motion was made by Council Member Gerke and seconded by Council Member Harter to take up 
Resolution 24-R-42.  Angel Falig presented the Resolution and answered questions of 
Council.  The vote was 7 Aye-Campbell, Fields, Gerke, Harter, Neal, Shaw, and Updike.  0 
Nay.  Motion Carried. 

Reports from Staff 

Chief of Staff Lisa Addington thanked staff for the great job done tonight, noting there was a lot of heavy 
lifting on this agenda.  Mrs. Addington wished Laura a happy birthday. 

Chief of Staff Lisa Addington directed everyone’s attention to the Administrator's Report, noting it 
includes information regarding the City's intent to issue a Request for Qualifications using the 
Construction Manager at Risk project delivery method for a potential new City Hall/Administrative 
building.  The City is looking to construct this building as an expansion of the existing BUILDS Department 
building, consistent with the Project Exodus initiatives to bring City officials and staff back into a workplace 
more supportive of collaboration amongst the various Departments of the City.  The section in the 
Administrator’s Report includes some basic background information as well as the selection criteria that 
will be used in the evaluation process.   For anyone who is interested in that information, she encouraged 
them to review this section of the report.  The RFQ is expected to be published next Wednesday.   

Chief of Staff Lisa Addington noted a document provided to Council from the Police regarding 
comprehensive data on the roundabout at Hines and Lynn.  Mrs. Addington noted we have received 
concerns regarding the roundabout so staff compiled data, adding we are implementing safety 
enhancements such as flashing yield signs along with Facebook posts with instructions on roundabout 
use.   

Chief of Staff Lisa Addington provided an update on Project Genesis, noting the consultant was here last 
week for evaluation and preparation.  Mrs. Addington noted we appreciate having them here and  they 
added efficiency gains in the interim prior to implementing new software. 

4

Item 1.



 

 
 4 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a r  S e s s i o n ,  S e p t e m b e r  1 0 ,  2 0 2 4  

Chief of Staff Lisa Addington noted the city partnered with Ozark Food Harvest, and staff donated 310 
pounds of food, which is the equivalent of 270 meals.  Mrs. Addington thanked all the staff who donated. 

Chief of Staff Lisa Addington gave a shout out to Garry Wilson, noting she hopes he is recovering well and 
will be at the next meeting. 

Mayor Franklin thanked staff for the changes in the September meetings, noting some Council Members 
will be attending the MML conference next week to learn new information and network.  Mayor Franklin 
expressed his appreciation for the opportunity to attend.  Mayor Franklin noted Council Member Brian 
Fields is now certified as a Certified Municipal Official.  Mayor Franklin noted the program is designed to 
be completed in two years and he knocked it out.  Mayor Franklin noted that he and Mr. fields will both 
be on stage representing Republic in receiving certifications. 

Mayor Franklin thanked city staff for the work on the agenda.  Mayor Franklin also thanked Mr. Cash for 
coming to speak on something encouraging.   

Adjournment 

Mayor Franklin adjourned the meeting at 6:33 p.m. 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________         ___________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk                                    Eric Franklin, Mayor 
 

5

Item 1.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 
24-R-43 A Resolution of the City Council Approving the Dates for 
Meetings of the City Council, Planning and Zoning Commission, and 
Board of Adjustment During Calendar Year 2025. 

Submitted By: Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

Date: October 1, 2024 
 

Issue Statement 

To review and approve the City Council and other meeting dates for 2025. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

Council Meetings will remain on the first and third Tuesdays of each month except for the following 

meetings: 

 Only 1 meeting in July on July 15th 

 Second August meeting moved due to the tax levy to August 26th 

 First September meeting removed due to the meeting on August 26th 

 Only 1 meeting in December moved to 2nd week on December 9th 

 

Planning and Zoning Commission will remain on the second Monday except for the following meetings: 

October is moved to October 6th for Columbus Day. 

November is moved to November 1st for Veteran’s Day. 

December is moved up a week to provide time between Planning and Zoning and the Council Meeting. 

 

After the meeting dates have been approved by City Council, the dates will be published in The Greene 

County Commonwealth newspaper. Holidays have been taken into consideration. 

 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

6

Item 2.



RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-43 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-43 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING THE DATES FOR MEETINGS OF THE CITY COUNCIL, 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION, AND BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT DURING CALENDAR YEAR 2025 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and Charter 

City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the laws of the State 

of Missouri; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council generally meets twice per month; and 
 

WHEREAS, other City Commissions and Committees, including the Planning and Zoning Commission 
and the Board of Adjustment, generally meet once per month; and 

 
WHEREAS, in order to provide the citizens with information on meeting dates with as much advance 

notice as possible, and to encourage citizen participation at those meetings, the City Council finds it in the best 
interest of the citizens to publish a list of the dates for all regular meetings of the City Council, as well as other 
City Commissions and Committees, for the upcoming calendar year. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. The list of 2025 City Council and other 2025 City Committees and Commissions 

meeting dates, attached hereto and labeled “Attachment 1,” is hereby approved. 

 
Section 2. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to publish the 2025 City Council and 

other 2025 meeting dates in The Greene County Commonwealth newspaper and on 

the City’s website. 

 
Section 3.  The whereas clauses are specifically incorporated herein by reference.  

 

Section 4.  This Resolution shall take effect after passage as provided by law.  

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri 
this 1st day of October, 2024. 
 
 
      _______________________________________ 
                      Eric Franklin, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

 

 

 

7

Item 2.



RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-43 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-43 
 

Approved as to Form:  

 

 

]Final Passage and Vote: 

 

8

Item 2.



 

 

 

2025 Council Meeting Dates 
January 2025  
January 2, 2025 Board of Adjustment Meeting 

January 7, 2025 City Council Meeting 

January 13, 2025 Planning and Zoning Meeting 
January 21, 2025 City Council Meeting  

February 2025  
February 4, 2025 City Council Meeting 

February 6, 2025 Board of Adjustment Meeting 
February 10, 2025 Planning & Zoning Meeting  

February 18, 2025 City Council Meeting  

March 2025  
March 4, 2025 City Council Meeting 

March 6, 2025 Board of Adjustment Meeting 
March 10, 2025 Planning & Zoning Meeting 

March 18, 2025 City Council Meeting 

April 2025  
April 1, 2025 City Council Meeting 

April 3, 2025 Board of Adjustment Meeting 
April 14, 2025 Planning & Zoning Meeting 

April 15, 2025 City Council Meeting 
May 2025  

May 1, 2025 Board of Adjustment Meeting 

May 6, 2025 City Council Meeting 
May 12, 2025 Planning & Zoning Meeting 

May 20, 2025 City Council Meeting 
June 2025  

June 3, 2025 City Council Meeting 
June 5, 2025 Board of Adjustment Meeting 

June 9, 2025 Planning & Zoning Meeting  

June 17, 2025 City Council Meeting 
July 2025  

July 3, 2025 Board of Adjustment Meeting  

9

Item 2.



 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATES 
Page 2 of 2 

 

July 14, 2025 Planning & Zoning Meeting 

July 15, 2025 City Council Meeting 
August 2025  

August 5, 2025 City Council Meeting 
August 7, 2025 Board of Adjustment Meeting 

August 11, 2025 Planning & Zoning Meeting 

August 26, 2025 City Council Meeting (Meeting moved to 
set the 2025 Tax Levy) 

September 2025  
September 4, 2025 Board of Adjustment Meeting 

September 8, 2025 Planning & Zoning Meeting 
September 16, 2025 City Council Meeting 

October 2025  

October 2, 2025 Board of Adjustment Meeting 
October 6, 2025 Planning & Zoning Meeting (Moved for 

Columbus Day) 
October 7, 2025 City Council Meeting 

October 21, 2025 City Council Meeting 
November 2025  

November 1, 2025 Planning & Zoning Meeting (move for 
Veteran’s Day) 

November 4, 2025 City Council Meeting 
November 6, 2025 Board of Adjustment Meeting 

November 18, 2025 City Council Meeting 

December 2025  
December 1, 2025 Planning & Zoning Meeting (moved for 

1 Council Meeting) 
December 4, 2025 Board of Adjustment Meeting 

December 9, 2025 City Council Meeting (Meeting moved 
due to only one meeting in December) 

 
 
 

10

Item 2.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 24-55 An Ordinance of the City Council Authorizing Execution of an 
Intergovernmental Agreement with the Missouri Highways and 
Transportation Commission for the City’s Acceptance of Certain Grant 
Funds and Contribution of Local Match Funding for Public Improvements 
Included in the Route MM Realignment Project (Greene County Job 
Number 8S0836D). 

Submitted By: Karen Haynes, Community Development Director. 

Date: October 1, 2024 
 

Issue Statement 

The BUILDS Department is requesting approval authorizing the City Administrator to execute an Inter-

Governmental Agreement (IGA) with the Missouri Highway Transportation Commission (MHTC), for 

acceptance of Grant Awards and authorizing matching funds for public improvement projects on State 

Route MM (MM Realignment Project).  

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The Inter-Governmental Agreement (IGA) formalizes our acceptance of grant funding and authorization 

of the required local match funding for public improvement projects along the State Highway MM 

Realignment Project, including continuation of the existing multi-use path, pedestrian underpass, and 

utilization of escrow funds for the planned intersection improvement at West Farm Road 160. 

 

Council approved a Resolution April 11, 2023, authorizing the submittal for grant funding for the multi-

use path and pedestrian underpass for the project; the City was awarded the funding for both public 

improvements on August 25, 2023.   

 

The multi-use path project includes continuation of the existing multi-use path in the Stone Creek Falls 

Development, north, to the approach of the planned bridge over the Railroad; the path consists of 

approximately 2800 linear feet.  The City is partnering with the Missouri Department of Transportation 

(MODOT) on the project; the City’s estimated local match for the project cost is $62,727 and acceptance 

of a Transportation Alternative Program (TAP) Grant in the amount of $250,910.   

 

The pedestrian underpass will connect the multi-use path to future planned pedestrian facilities along 

the corridor, which will provide opportunities for pedestrian connectivity to the City’s future Park.  The 

City is responsible for the cost of the project, which will include a $61,447 local match and acceptance 

11

Item 3.



 

of a Transportation Alternative Program (TAP) Grant in the amount of $245,787. 

 

The IGA also formalizes the City’s contribution of $436,266, held in escrow by the City from Amazon, for 

future required improvements to the intersection of West Farm Road 160 and State Highway MM; the 

City of Republic and Amazon entered into a Developers Agreement outlining the escrow terms, with 

concurrence from MODOT, executed October 2020.  MODOT’s State Highway MM Realignment Project 

includes a planned roundabout at the intersection.   

 

MODOT is working on final plans for the MM Realignment Project and is anticipating letting the project 

late spring 2025; the project in its entirety will be managed by MODOT.   

 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

 

12

Item 3.



BILL NO. 24-55  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-55 1 ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT WITH THE MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION FOR THE CITY’S 

ACCEPTANCE OF CERTAIN GRANT FUNDS AND CONTRIBUTION OF LOCAL MATCH FUNDING FOR 
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS INCLUDED IN THE ROUTE MM REALIGNMENT PROJECT (GREENE COUNTY JOB 

NUMBER 8S0836D) 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” and/or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation 
and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under 
the laws of the State of Missouri; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Missouri Highways And Transportation Commission (“MHTC”) is partnering with 

the City to bring improvements along the new Highway MM alignment including, among others, 
continuation of the existing multi-use trail and a pedestrian underpass; and 

 
WHEREAS, on or about April 11, 2023, via Resolution 23-R-23, the Council authorized the City’s 

submission of applications for certain grant funding to be used toward the trail extension and the 
pedestrian underpass; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City submitted its applications for the funding and on or about August 25, 2023,  

was awarded the funding for both public improvements; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Inter-Governmental Agreement (IGA) formalizes our acceptance of grant funding 

and authorization of the required local match funding for public improvement projects along the State 
Highway MM Realignment Project; and  

 
WHEREAS, the pedestrian underpass will connect the multi-use path to future planned pedestrian 

facilities along the corridor, which will provide opportunities for pedestrian connectivity to the City’s 
future Park; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City is responsible for the cost of the project, which will include a $31,878 local 

match and acceptance of a Transportation Alternative Program (TAP) Grant in the amount of $127,511; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council finds it in the best interest of the City to approve the IGA with MHTC, as it 

will provide additional pedestrian connectivity and increase trail connectivity in the City. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: The Mayor, on behalf of the City, is authorized to enter into an Intergovernmental 
Agreement with Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission setting forth 
the terms and conditions of the agreement between the parts, to be in 
substantially the same form as that attached hereto and labeled “Attachment 1.”    

 
Section 2: The Mayor and/or the City Administrator, on behalf of the City, is authorized to 

take the necessary steps to execute this Ordinance.  
 
Section 3: The WHEREAS clauses above are specifically incorporated herein by reference. 

13

Item 3.



BILL NO. 24-55  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-55 2 ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

  
Section 4:  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any provisions hereof are 

declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance.  

 
Section 5: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2024. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Eric Franklin, Mayor  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  

 

Final Passage and Vote: 

 

 

14

Item 3.



CCO Form: DE63 Municipal and Cost Apportionment Agreement 
Approved: 12/17 (BDG) Route:  MM 

Revised:  03/24 (TLP) County: Greene 

Modified: Job No.:8S0836D 
Agreement No.: 2024-03-83590 

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
MUNICIPAL AND COST APPORTIONMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by the Missouri Highways and Transportation 
Commission (hereinafter, "Commission") and the City of Republic, Missouri, a municipal 
corporation (hereinafter, "City"). 

WITNESSETH: 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and 
representations contained herein, the parties agree as follows: 

(1) IMPROVEMENT DESIGNATION:  The public improvement designated as
Route MM, Greene County, Job No. 8S0836D shall consist of widening Route MM 
(Brookline Avenue), relocation of Route MM from Farm Road 160 to Route 60, including 
a railroad overpass, intersection improvements at Farm Road 160 and Route 60, shared 
use path east of BNSF railway to Route 60, and a shared use path underpass east of 
BNSF railway. 

(2) IMPROVEMENT WITHIN CITY:  The improvement within the City is located
as follows: 

On Route MM, Greene County, from Haile Street to Farm Road 160; then on a new 
alignment over the BNSF Cherokee Subdivision to Route 60 near the intersection with 
Farm Road 103.  

(3) EXTENT OF AGREEMENT:  This Agreement shall apply only to the portion
of the improvement lying within the city limits as they exist on the date this Agreement is 
executed by the City. 

(4) LOCATION:  The general location of the public improvement is shown on
an attached sketch marked "Exhibit A" and made a part of this Agreement.  The detailed 
location of the improvement is shown on the plans prepared by the Commission for the 
above-designated route and project. 

(5) PURPOSE:  It is the intent of this Agreement to outline the parties’
responsibilities with respect to the construction and maintenance of those improvements 
to the State Highway System located within the City limits described in paragraphs (1) 
and (2) above and designated as Commission Job No. 8S0836D.  The parties’ 

Attachment 1

15

Item 3.



 

 
 

2 

responsibilities with respect to the funding of said improvements are outlined further 
herein.  
 
 (6) PROJECT RESPONSIBILITIES:  With regard to project responsibilities 
under this Agreement, the parties agree to contribute as follows: 

 
  (A) The Commission will be responsible for the preparation of detailed 
right-of-way and construction plans and project specifications.  This includes design, 
letting of project, and inspection of project.  The plans shall be prepared in accordance 
with and conform to Commission requirements.   
 
  (B) The Commission will acquire right-of-way as needed for the project 
in accordance with Commission requirements.  
 

 (C) The Commission will be responsible for letting the work for the herein 
improvement, which includes advertising the project for bids and awarding the 
construction contract.  The Commission will solicit bids for the herein improvement in 
accordance with plans developed by the Commission, or as the plans may from time to 
time be modified in order to carry out the work as contemplated. 
 

 (D) The Commission will be responsible for construction of the herein 
improvements, which includes administration of the construction contract and inspection 
of the project work.  The project shall be constructed in accordance with and conform to 
Commission requirements. 
 
 (7)  PAYMENT RESPONSIBILITIES:  With regard to payment responsibilities 
under this Agreement, the parties agree to as follows: 
 
  (A) COST APPORTIONMENT COMPONENTS: The City’s contribution 
shall consist of a lump sum amount to partially fund intersection improvements at Route 
MM and Farm Road 160, a fifty-fifty percent (50%-50%) cost apportionment for a shared 
use path from east of BNSF Railway to Route 60, and the City will pay the total project 
(100%) cost of a shared use path underpass east of BNSF railway.  
 
  (B) LUMP SUM INTERSECTION: The City shall contribute four hundred 
thirty-six thousand, two hundred sixty-six dollars ($436,266), no more and no less, toward 
intersection improvements at Route MM and Farm Road 160. 
 
  (C) SHARED-USE PATH: The City and Commission will share the cost 
of the shared-use path equally (50%-50%). The total cost of the shared use path includes 
preliminary engineering, construction engineering, and construction, and is estimated to 
be five hundred forty-eight thousand, three hundred eighty-two dollars ($548,382). The 
City will be responsible for fifty percent (50%) of the total project cost, estimated to be two 
hundred seventy-four thousand, one hundred ninety-one dollars ($274,191). Of this 
amount, the City agrees the Commission may program up to two hundred nineteen 
thousand, three hundred fifty-three dollars ($219,353) of Transportation Alternatives 

16

Item 3.



 

 
 

3 

Program (TAP) Funds allocated to the City by the Ozarks Transportation Organization 
and the City will provide fifty-four thousand, eight hundred thirty-eight dollars ($54,838) in 
local cash for required match. The Commission will also be responsible for fifty percent 
(50%) of the total project cost, estimated to be two hundred seventy-four thousand, one 
hundred ninety-one dollars ($274,191). Of this amount, the Commission will receive a 
credit for preliminary engineering and construction engineering, estimated to be one 
hundred fifty-six thousand, six hundred eighty dollars ($156,680). The remainder of the 
Commission’s contribution, estimated to be one hundred seventeen thousand, five 
hundred eleven dollars ($117,511), will come from the Commission’s district distributed 
construction funds. The City and Commission agree that final engineering costs will be 
calculated on a pro-rata share of the shared-use path construction cost to the total project 
construction cost. The City and Commission will share cost overruns and cost savings 
equally. If the City incurs overruns, the City agrees that the Commission may program an 
additional one hundred twenty-two thousand, six hundred forty-seven dollars ($122,647) 
of TAP funds, with the City providing required match in local cash. The maximum potential 
contribution of TAP funds is thus three hundred forty-two thousand dollars ($342,000) 
toward the City’s share of the shared-use path component of the project. For overruns 
beyond this amount, the City agrees the Commission may program STBG-Urban funds 
allocated by the Ozarks Transportation Organization up to a total of eighty thousand 
dollars ($80,000), with the City providing required matching funds in cash. Any of the 
City’s share of cost overruns over these amounts will be paid in local cash.  
 
  (D) SHARED-USE PATH UNDERPASS: The City shall be responsible 
for the total cost (100%) of the Shared Use Path Underpass. The total cost of the shared 
use path underpass includes preliminary engineering, construction engineering, and 
construction and is estimated to be one hundred fifty-nine thousand, three hundred 
eighty-nine dollars ($159,389). Of this amount, the City agrees the Commission may 
program up to one hundred twenty-seven thousand, five hundred eleven dollars 
($127,511) of Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) funds allocated by the Ozarks 
Transportation Organization. The City will provide the required local match in cash, 
currently estimated to be thirty-one thousand, eight hundred seventy-eight dollars 
($31,878). The City and Commission agree that final engineering costs will be calculated 
on a pro-rata share of the shared-use path underpass construction cost to the total project 
construction cost. The City will be responsible for all overruns and will receive any savings 
for the shared use path underpass. If the City incurs any overruns, the City agrees the 
Commission may program up to an additional two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000) 
of STBG-Urban funds allocated by the Ozarks Transportation Organization. The City will 
provide local cash to match these funds. Any of the City’s share of cost overruns over 
these amounts will be paid in local cash.  
 
  (E) REMAINING PROJECT OVERRUNS AND SAVINGS: For the 
Shared-Use path, the City and Commission will share overruns and underruns equally. 
City share of overruns to be 20% local and 80% TAP up to a maximum $342,000 TAP; 
then 80% STBG-Urban. For the Shared-Use Underpass, the City is responsible for 100% 
of overruns and receives 100% of savings. City overruns shall be 20% local and 80% 
STBG-Urban. For the remainder of project, the Commission is responsible for 100% of 

17

Item 3.



 

 
 

4 

overruns and receives 100% of savings. The City’s contribution to Route MM and Farm 
Road 160 intersection is a lump sum. 
 
  (F) CITY CASH CONTRIBUTION: The City’s current total estimated 
cash contribution is five hundred twenty-two thousand, nine hundred eighty-two dollars 
($522,982). The City shall remit a check in the amount of five hundred twenty-two 
thousand, nine hundred eighty-two dollars ($522,982) no later than five (5) days prior to 
the Commission’s advertisement of the project for bids.  This check should be made 
payable to Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission – Credit Local Fund.  If 
the City fails to make the deposit, the Commission is under no obligation to continue with 
the project.   
 
  (G) If, at the time of the letting, the lowest responsive bid is higher than 
the estimated construction and inspection cost amount, the City, upon written notification 
from the Commission shall remit a check in the amount of its share of the difference 
between the estimated amount and the lowest responsive bid no later than one (1) day 
prior to the date of the Commission meeting wherein the subject bid will be considered 
for award or a later date set by the Commission in its sole discretion.  In the event the 
Commission, in its sole discretion, extends the day the City payment is due, it shall notify 
the City of the new due date in writing, which shall be binding immediately upon the City’s 
receipt of the written notice. The check must be made payable to the Missouri Highways 
and Transportation Commission – Credit Local Fund. The Commission, in its sole 
discretion, reserves the right to take action at the said Commission meeting and either 
reject all bids if the City fails to make the payment by the due date, or award the contract 
to the lowest responsive bidder contingent upon receipt of the additional funds from the 
City by the extended due date. If the Commission makes a contingent award of the 
contract and the City fails to make the required deposit(s) by the extended due date, the 
contingency of the contract award by the Commission shall be deemed unsatisfied, the 
award of the contract shall be deemed null and void and the Commission shall be under 
no obligation to continue with the project. 
     
 (8)  COMMINGLING OF FUNDS:  The City agrees that all funds deposited by 
the City, pursuant to this Agreement with the Commission, may be commingled by the 
Commission with other similar monies deposited from other sources.  Any deposit may 
be invested at the discretion of the Commission in such investments allowed by its 
Investment Policy.  All interest monies shall be payable to the Local Fund and credited to 
the project.  If the amount deposited plus any applicable credited interest with the 
Commission shall be less than the actual obligation of the City for this project, the City, 
upon written notification by the Commission, shall tender the necessary monies to the 
Commission to completely satisfy its obligation.  Upon completion of the project, any 
excess funds or interest credited to the City shall be refunded to the City based on its pro 
rata share of the investment. 
 
 (9) RIGHT-OF-WAY USE:  The City grants the right to use the right-of-way of 
public roads, streets, alleys and any other property owned by the City as necessary for 
construction and maintenance of said public improvement. 

18

Item 3.



 

 
 

5 

 
 (10) CLOSE AND VACATE:  The City shall temporarily close and vacate all 
streets or roads, or parts thereof, which may be necessary to permit the construction of 
the project in accordance with the detailed plans.  When the Commission deems it 
necessary to close Commercial Avenue, Farm Road 164, Farm Road 103, Farm Road 
170, Haile Street, Orr Street, Stone Creek Drive, Stone Falls Road, and Farm Road 168 
permanently during construction, the City shall be advised in time to make provisions for 
the diversion and rerouting of traffic. 
 
 (11) RIGHT-OF-WAY ACQUISITION:   
 
  (A)   Upon approval of all agreements, plans and specifications by the 
Commission and the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), the Commission will file 
copies of the plans with the city clerk of the City and the county clerk of the county and 
proceed to acquire any necessary right-of-way required for the construction of the 
improvement. 
 
  (B)   The portion of state highway covered by this Agreement shall be a 
limited access highway between stations 39+58.01 and 47+37.08.  Rights of access 
between the highway and abutting property shall be procured or conveyed and the cost 
classified as right-of-way cost and paid for in the same manner as other right-of-way 
costs.  Only such rights of ingress and egress shall be allowed as indicated on the plans 
approved by the Commission and FHWA. 
 
 (12) UTILITY RELOCATION: 
 
  (A)   The Commission and the City shall cooperate to secure the 
temporary or permanent removal, relocation, or adjustment of public utilities or private 
lines, poles, wires, conduits, and pipes located on the right-of-way of existing public ways 
as necessary for construction of the improvement and the cost shall be borne by such 
public utilities or the owners of the facilities except where the City is by existing franchise 
or agreement obligated to pay all or a portion of such cost, in which case the City will pay 
its obligated portion of the cost. 
 
  (B)   The Commission shall secure the removal, relocation, or adjustment 
of any public or private utilities located upon private easements and shall pay any costs 
incurred therein. 
 
  (C)   Should it be necessary to alter, relocate or adjust any city-owned 
utility facilities outside the present city limits on public right-of-way or on state highway 
right-of-way within or outside the city limits or within the right-of-way of a public way other 
than a city street or alley, the alteration, relocation, or adjustment shall be made by the 
City at its cost. 
 
  (D) The City agrees that any installation, removal, relocation, 
maintenance, or repair of public or private utilities involving work within highway right-of-

19

Item 3.



 

 
 

6 

way included in this project shall be done only in accordance with the general rules and 
regulations of the Commission and after a permit for the particular work has been obtained 
from the Commission's District Engineer or his authorized representative.  Similarly, the 
City will allow no work on the highway right-of-way involving excavation or alteration in 
any manner of the highway as constructed, including but not limited to driveway 
connections, except in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Commission and 
only after a permit for the specific work has been obtained from the Commission's District 
Engineer or his authorized representative.  The City shall take whatever actions that are 
necessary to assure compliance with this Subsection. 
 
 (13) LIGHTING: The Commission will, at its cost and expense, install, operate, 
and maintain basic highway intersection or interchange lighting at warranted locations on 
the improvement.  The construction, installation, and maintenance of any other or further 
lighting system on the public improvement covered by this Agreement shall be only in 
accordance with the Commission's policy on highway lighting in effect, and to the extent 
deemed warranted by the Commission, at the time of any such installation.  No lighting 
system shall be installed or maintained by the City on the improvement without approval 
of the Commission. 
 
 (14) TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES:  The installation, operation and maintenance 
of all traffic signals, pavement markings, signs, and devices on the improvement, 
including those between the highway and intersecting streets shall be under the exclusive 
jurisdiction and at the cost of the Commission.  The City shall not install, operate, or 
maintain any traffic signals, signs or other traffic control devices on the highway or on 
streets and highways at any point where they intersect this highway without approval of 
the Commission. 
 
 (15) DRAINAGE: The Commission will construct drainage facilities along the 
improvement and may use any existing storm and surface water drainage facilities now 
in existence in the area.  The City shall be responsible for receiving and disposing of 
storm and surface water discharged from those drainage facilities which the Commission 
constructs within the limits of highway right-of-way to the extent of the City's authority and 
control of the storm sewer facilities or natural drainage involved. 
 
 (16) PERMITS:  The Commission shall secure any necessary approvals or 
permits from the Surface Transportation Board, the Public Service Commission of 
Missouri, or any other state or federal regulating authority required to permit the 
construction and maintenance of the highway. 
 
 (17) COMMENCEMENT OF WORK:  After acquisition of the necessary right-of-
way, the Commission shall construct the highway in accordance with final detailed plans 
approved by the Federal Highway Administration (or as they may be changed from time 
to time by the Commission with the approval of the FHWA) at such time as federal and 
state funds are allocated to the public improvement in an amount sufficient to pay for the 
federal and state government's proportionate share of construction and right-of-way 
costs.  The obligation of the Commission toward the actual construction of the public 

20

Item 3.



 

 
 

7 

improvement shall be dependent upon the completion of plans in time to obligate federal 
funds for such construction, upon approval of the plans by the FHWA, upon the award by 
the Commission of the contract for the construction, and upon the approval of the award 
by the FHWA. 
 
 (18) MAINTENANCE: 
 
  (A)   Except as provided in this Agreement, upon completion of the public 
improvement, the Commission will maintain all portions of the improvement within the 
Commission owned right-of-way.  Maintenance by the Commission shall not in any case 
include maintenance or repair of sidewalks whether new or used in place, water supply 
lines, sanitary or storm sewers (except those storm sewers constructed by the 
Commission to drain the highway), city-owned utilities within the right-of-way or the 
removal of snow other than the machine or chemical removal from the traveled portion of 
the highway. 
 
  (B)   When it is necessary to revise or adjust city streets, the right-of-way 
acquired for these adjustments and connections will be deeded to the City. 
 
  (C)   Effective upon completion of construction, the Commission shall 
transfer ownership to the City, and the City will accept the portions of existing highways 
within City replaced by this improvement.  
 
  (D)   The City shall inspect and maintain the sidewalks constructed by this 
project in a condition reasonably safe to the public and, to the extent allowed by law, shall 
indemnify and hold the Commission harmless from any claims arising from the 
construction and maintenance of said sidewalks. 
 
 (19) ACCEPTED WITHIN HIGHWAY SYSTEM:  Effective upon execution of this 
Agreement, the Commission temporarily accepts the portion of the City street system 
described in this Agreement as part of the State Highway System for the purposes of this 
project.  However, during the construction period contemplated in this Agreement: 
 
  (A) The Commission will assume no police or traffic control functions not 
obligatory upon Commission immediately prior to the execution of this Agreement, and 
 
  (B) The City shall perform or cause to be performed normal maintenance 
on the project site. 
 
 (20) CITY TO MAINTAIN:  Upon completion of construction of this improvement, 
the City shall accept control and maintenance of the improved City street that was 
temporarily accepted as part of the State Highway System for the purposes of this project 
pursuant to paragraph (19) above and shall thereafter keep, control, and maintain the 
same as, and for all purposes, a part of the City street system at its own cost and expense 
and at no cost and expense whatsoever to the Commission.  All obligations of the 
Commission with respect to the City street system under this Agreement shall cease upon 

21

Item 3.



 

 
 

8 

completion of the improvement. 
 
 (21) POLICE POWERS:  It is the intent of the parties to this Agreement that the 
City shall retain its police powers with respect to the regulation of traffic upon the 
improvement contemplated.  However, the City will enact, keep in force, and enforce only 
such ordinances relating to traffic movement and parking restrictions as may be approved 
by the Commission and as are not in conflict with any regulations for federal aid.  The 
Commission shall not arbitrarily withhold approval of reasonable traffic regulations, signs, 
and markings which will permit the movement of traffic in accordance with accepted traffic 
regulation practices. 
 
 (22) RESTRICTION OF PARKING:  Since the improvement is being designed 
and constructed to accommodate a maximum amount of traffic with a minimum amount 
of right-of-way, the City shall take whatever actions that are necessary to prevent parking 
upon the highway or any part of the area of the highway right-of-way within the limits of 
the improvement. 
 
 (23) OUTDOOR ADVERTISING:  No billboards or other advertising signs or 
devices or vending or sale of merchandise will be permitted within the right-of-way limits 
of the project and the City shall take whatever actions that are necessary to enforce this 
Section. 
 
 (24) WITHHOLDING OF FUNDS:  In the event that the City fails, neglects, or 
refuses to enact, keep in force or enforce ordinances specified or enacts ordinances 
contrary to the provisions in this Agreement, or in any other manner fails, neglects or 
refuses to perform any of the obligations assumed by it under this Agreement, the 
Commission may, after serving written request upon the City for compliance and the City's 
failure to comply, withhold the expenditure of further funds for maintenance, improvement, 
construction, or reconstruction of the state highway system in the City. 
 
 (25) FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION:  This Agreement is entered into 
subject to approval by the Federal Highway Administration and is further subject to the 
availability of federal and state funds for this construction. 
 
 (26) INDEMNIFICATION:  To the extent allowed or imposed by law, the City 
shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Commission, including its members and 
department employees, from any claim or liability whether based on a claim for damages 
to real or personal property or to a person for any matter relating to or arising out of the 
City's wrongful or negligent performance of its obligations under this Agreement.   
 
 (27) AMENDMENTS:  Any change in this Agreement, whether by modification 
or supplementation, must be accomplished by a formal contract amendment approved 
and signed by representatives of the City and Commission, respectively, each of whom 
being duly authorized to execute the contract amendment on behalf of the City and 
Commission, respectively. 
 

22

Item 3.



 

 
 

9 

 (28) COMMISSION REPRESENTATIVE:  The Commission's Assistant Chief 
Engineer is designated as the Commission's representative for the purpose of 
administering the provisions of this Agreement.  The Commission's representative may 
designate by written notice other persons having the authority to act on behalf of the 
Commission in furtherance of the performance of this Agreement. 
 
 (29) CITY REPRESENTATIVE:  The City's City Administrator is designated as 
the City's representative for the purpose of administering the provisions of this 
Agreement.  The City's representative may designate by written notice other persons 
having the authority to act on behalf of the City in furtherance of the performance of this 
Agreement. 
 
 (30) NOTICES:  Any notice or other communication required or permitted to be 
given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed given three (3) days after delivery 
by United States mail, regular mail postage prepaid, or upon receipt by personal or 
facsimile delivery, addressed as follows: 
 
  (A) To the City: 
   Mr. David Cameron 
   City Administrator 
   City of Republic 
   213 North Main 
   Republic, MO 65738 
   DCameron@republicmo.com 
      
  (B) To the Commission: 
   Ms. Stacy Reese 
   District Engineer 
   Missouri Department of Transportation 
   3025 E. Kearney 
   Springfield, MO 65803 
   Stacy.Reese@modot.mo.gov 
   
 
or to such other place as the parties may designate in accordance with this Agreement.  
To be valid, facsimile delivery shall be followed by delivery of the original document, or a 
clear and legible copy thereof, within three (3) business days of the date of facsimile 
transmission of that document. 
 
 (31) ASSIGNMENT:  The City shall not assign, transfer or delegate any interest 
in this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Commission. 
 
 (32) LAW OF MISSOURI TO GOVERN:  This Agreement shall be construed 
according to the laws of the State of Missouri.  The City shall comply with all local, state 
and federal laws and regulations relating to the performance of the contract. 
 

23

Item 3.



 

 
 

10 

 (33) VENUE:  It is agreed by the parties that any action at law, suit in equity, or 
other judicial proceeding to enforce or construe this Agreement, or regarding its alleged 
breach, shall be instituted only in the Circuit Court of Cole County, Missouri. 
 
 (34) SOLE BENEFICIARY:  This Agreement is made for the sole benefit of the 
parties hereto and nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or 
benefits to anyone other than the Commission and the City. 
 
 (35) AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE:  The signers of this Agreement warrant that 
they are acting officially and properly on behalf of their respective institutions and have 
been duly authorized, directed and empowered to execute this Agreement. 
 
 (36) SECTION HEADINGS:  All section headings contained in this Agreement 
are for the convenience of reference only and are not intended to define or limit the scope 
of any provision of this Agreement. 
 
 (37) AUDIT OF RECORDS:  The City must maintain all records relating to this 
Agreement, including but not limited to invoices, payrolls, etc.  These records must be 
available at all reasonable times at no charge to the Commission and/or its designees or 
representatives during the period of this Agreement and any extension thereof, and for 
three (3) years from the date of final payment made under this Agreement. 
 
 (38) COMMISSION RIGHT OF WAY:  All improvements made within the state-
owned right-of-way shall become the Commission's property, and all future alterations, 
modifications, or maintenance thereof, will be the responsibility of the Commission, 
except as otherwise provided by this Agreement or a separate written agreement. 
 
 (39) NO INTEREST:  By contributing to the cost of this project or improvement, 
the City gains no interest in the constructed roadway or improvements on Commission 
right of way whatsoever.  The Commission shall not be obligated to keep the constructed 
improvements or roadway in place if the Commission, in its sole discretion, determines 
removal or modification of the roadway or improvements, is in the best interests of the 
state highway system.  In the event the Commission decides to remove the landscaping, 
roadway, or improvements, the City shall not be entitled to a refund of the funds 
contributed by the City pursuant to this Agreement.  
 
 (40) ADDITIONAL FUNDING:  In the event the Commission obtains additional 
federal, state, local, private or other funds to construct the improvement being constructed 
pursuant to this Agreement that are not obligated at the time of execution of this 
Agreement, the Commission, in its sole discretion, may consider any request by the City 
for an off-set for the deposited funds, a reduction in obligation, or a return of, a refund of, 
or a release of any funds deposited by the City with the Commission pursuant to this 
Agreement. In the event the Commission agrees to grant the City's request for a refund, 
the Commission, in its sole discretion, shall determine the amount and the timing of the 
refund.  Any and all changes in the parties' financial responsibilities resulting from the 
Commission's determination of the City's request for a refund pursuant to this provision 

24

Item 3.



 

 
 

11 

must be accomplished by a formal contract amendment signed and approved by the duly 
authorized representative of the City and the Commission. 
 

 (41) NO ADVERSE INFERENCE: This Agreement shall not be construed more 
strongly against one party or the other. The parties to this Agreement had equal access 
to, input with respect to, and influence over the provisions of this Agreement. Accordingly, 
no rule of construction which requires that any allegedly ambiguous provision be 
interpreted more strongly against one party than the other shall be used in interpreting 
this Agreement. 
 
 (42) ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement represents the entire 
understanding between the parties regarding this subject and supersedes all prior written 
or oral communications between the parties regarding this subject. 
 
 (43) VOLUNTARY NATURE OF AGREEMENT:  Each party to this Agreement 
warrants and certifies that it enters into this transaction and executes this Agreement 
freely and voluntarily and without being in a state of duress or under threats or coercion. 
 
 (44) CANCELLATION:  The Commission may cancel this Agreement at any time 
for a material breach of contractual obligations or for convenience by providing the City 
with written notice of cancellation.  Should the Commission exercise its right to cancel this 
Agreement for such reasons, cancellation will become effective upon the date specified 
in the notice of cancellation sent to the City. 
 
 

[remainder of page intentionally left blank] 

25

Item 3.



 

 
 

12 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this Agreement on the 
date last written below. 
 
 Executed by the City on __________________________________(Date). 

 Executed by the Commission on_________________________________(Date). 

 
 
MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND 
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION  CITY OF REPUBLIC 
 
 
By: ___________________________  By: __________________________ 
 
Title: __________________________  Title: _________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:        ATTEST:   
 
 
______________________________  By: __________________________ 
Secretary to the Commission 
       Title: _________________________ 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________  By: __________________________ 
Commission Counsel 
       Title: _________________________ 
 
 
       Ordinance Number________________  
 
 

26

Item 3.



 

 
 

13 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 

 

  

27

Item 3.



 

 
 

14 

 

 

Exhibit B 

Project Name: Route MM Relocation and Railroad Overpass 

MoDOT Job Number: 8S0836D    

Description: 
Relocate Brookline Avenue, add railroad grade separation and sidewalks from 
County Road 160 to Rte. 60 in Republic. 

     

     
Project Estimate     

  Total Project 

Rte. MM and FR 
160 Intersection 

Lump Sum 
Shared-use 

Path (50%-50%) 

Shared-use Path 
Underpass (100% 

City) 

Preliminary Engineering $3,999,000 $0 $70,506 $20,493 

Right-of-way $6,034,000 $0 $0 $0 

Right-of-way Incidentals $80,000 $0 $0 $0 

Utilities $265,000 $0 $0 $0 

Construction w/ Contingency $23,128,000 $436,266 $391,702 $113,849 

Non-contractuals $200,000 $0 $0 $0 

Inspection and Letting $4,888,000 $0 $86,174 $25,047 

Total $38,594,000 $436,266 $548,382 $159,389 

     
Project Responsibilities     
Preliminary Engineering MoDOT 

ROW Acquisition MoDOT 

Letting MoDOT 

Inspection MoDOT 

     
Financial Responsibilities     
City of Republic - Intersection  $436,266     Total Local Share 

City of Republic - Share Use Path $54,838     $869,846 

City of Republic - Underpass $31,878       

OTO - Shared Use Path - TAP $219,353       

OTO - Underpass - TAP $127,511       

MoDOT Operating Budget $8,967,000     Total MoDOT Share 

MoDOT SW Distributed Funds $28,757,154     $37,724,154 

 
How are overruns and underruns handled?    
Shared-Use path: City and Commission share overruns and underruns equaly. City share of overruns to be 20% local and 80% TAP 
up to a maximum $342,000 TAP; then 80% STBG-Urban.  
Underpass: City is responsible for 100% of overruns and receives 100% of savings. City overruns to be 20% local and 80% STBG-
Urban.  
Remainder of project: Commission is responsible for 100% of overruns and receives 100% of savings. City contribution to Rte. MM 
and Farm Road 160 intersection is a lump sum. 

28

Item 3.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 24-56 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Execution of a 
Developer Agreement with Empire District Electric Company for Parking 
Lot Access for the Future Morris Park on West State Highway 174.  

Submitted By: Stefani Fitzpatrick-Duncan, Engineer 

Date: October 1, 2024 
 

Issue Statement 

The BUILDS Department is requesting approval authorizing the City Administrator to enter into a 

Developer’s Agreement with Liberty Utilities for the dedication of a parking area for a future City Park 

near State Hwy 174 in exchange for the incorporation of stormwater improvements.  

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The City owns a parcel of land along Highway 174 which was donated to the City (via Ordinance 21-71) to 

be used for the development of Joshua Morris Park. Stormwater improvements are necessary at this 

location to facilitate use of the property.  

The City’s future stormwater improvements will include stormwater detention for proposed 

improvements to Liberty Utilities’ adjacent parcel.  The detention required for Liberty Utilities’ 

development will be incorporated into the City’s overall design for the stormwater improvement, in 

exchange for the dedication of a 0.423 acre parking area to serve a future City Park.  

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

 

29

Item 4.



BILL NO. 24-56  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-56  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING EXECUTION OF A DEVELOPER AGREEMENT WITH 
EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY FOR PARKING LOT ACCESS FOR THE FUTURE MORRIS PARK ON 

WEST STATE HIGHWAY 174 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 
Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Empire District Electric Company (“Empire”) acquired approximately 4.8 acres of 
real property located at 503 North West Avenue for a future Republic location; and 
 

WHEREAS, the location is adjacent to the land donated to the City of Republic for the future 
Morris Park; and  
 

WHEREAS, Empire has agreed to donate a portion of their real property for use by the City of 
Republic for parking at the future Morris Park; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Council finds the Developer Agreement is in the City’s best interest to allow ease 

of access to the future park.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: The City Administrator or his/her designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to 
enter into a Developer Agreement with the Empire District Electric Company 
(“Empire”) for parking access for Morris Park, in substantially the same form as 
Attachment 1.  

 
Section 2: The City Administrator, or his/her designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to 

take the necessary steps to execute this Ordinance.  
 
Section 3: The WHEREAS clauses above are specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
  
Section 4:  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any provisions hereof are 

declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance.  

 
Section 5: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2024. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Eric Franklin, Mayor  
 
 

30

Item 4.



BILL NO. 24-56  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-56  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 

Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 
Final Passage and Vote: 
 

 

 

31

Item 4.



  1 of 8 

DEVELOPER AGREEMENT 

THIS DEVELOPER AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into as of the date and year 
on which the final party hereto affixes his/her/its signature(s) below, by and between the City of 
Republic Missouri (“City”) and The Empire District Electric Company, d/b/a Liberty Utilities, a 
foreign for-profit corporation in good standing with the Missouri Secretary of State (“Liberty 
Utilities”) (“Developer” and/or “Liberty”).  City and Developer are referred to together herein as the 
“Parties.” 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the City is a municipal corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, 

Missouri; and 

WHEREAS, Developer is a foreign for-profit corporation in good standing with the Missouri 
Secretary of State and licensed to do business in the State of Missouri, including Greene County, 
Missouri; and 

WHEREAS, Developer is currently the owner of certain parcels of real property consisting of 

approximately 18,410 square feet of land located in the City of Republic, Missouri, the legal 

descriptions for which are included on Exhibits 1 and 2 (and more specifically, on Exhibit 1, 

EXHIBIT “A” and Exhibit 2, EXHIBIT “A”), attached and incorporated by reference herein into 
this Agreement (both parcels are referred to together as “the Property); and  

WHEREAS, Developer is additionally the owner of land located immediately adjacent to the 

Property, on which Developer will be required to construct certain stormwater detention 
improvements in order to develop the land for future use under the City’s permitting and other code 
requirements (“Developer’s Property”); and 

WHEREAS, Developer wishes to transfer interest in the Property, consisting of 
approximately 18,410 square feet of land, to the City for public purpose use in exchange for the City’s 
agreement to incorporate any necessary stormwater improvements required to satisfy Developer’s 
stormwater detention requirements for Developer’s Property into improvements the City will be 
constructing on or near the Property; and 

WHEREAS, Developer’s transfer of interest in the Property to the City is intended to be a 
donation to the City, to be effected through delivery of a Deed of Dedication, attached hereto as 

Exhibit 1, and a Quit Claim Deed, attached hereto as Exhibit 2, to the City; and 

WHEREAS, a private donation of land to the City for a public purpose use is permitted 

under Republic Municipal Code Section 410.100 (“Platting Exceptions”), and is not subject to the 
minor subdivision requirements regulations otherwise contained in Chapter 140; and 

WHEREAS, the City intends to use the dedicated Property for public use, tentatively to 
provide parking for a proposed future City park, if approved by City Council and subject to the 
availability of necessary funding; and  

WHEREAS, the Parties now enter into this Agreement with the intention of being bound 
by its terms and conditions, and with the understanding and acknowledgement that this Agreement 
is expressly contingent upon the approval of the City Council. 

Attachment 1

32

Item 4.



  2 of 8 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, 
the Parties agree as follows: 

 

1. Ability to Contract: Developer represents and warrants that it holds all ownership 
interest in the Donated Property and Subject Property subject to the terms of this 
Agreement, and that it has the legal authority and capacity to enter into this Agreement 
and fulfill all terms contained herein.  City represents and warrants that it has the legal 
authority and capacity to enter into this Agreement and fulfill all terms contained 
herein. 
  

2. Public Improvements: 

 

a. Scope of Work Under This Agreement:  In exchange for Developer’s dedication 

of the Property and other promises contained herein, City agrees to perform the 
following work under this Agreement (“Public Improvements” and/or “Work”): 

 
i. City will, at its own cost, incorporate any necessary stormwater improvements 

deemed required in order for Developer to satisfy applicable stormwater 
detention requirements for Developer’s Property into City’s planned 
construction of stormwater improvements on or about the Property for public 
use. 

ii. Unless otherwise specified in this Agreement or as modified by written 
amendment executed by the Parties, City will be the sole judge of the work 
required to fully and properly complete construction of the Public 
Improvements and meet any other obligations of the City under this 
Agreement, including but not limited to, the work to be performed, the 

contractors or subcontractors hired to do the work being performed, the 
engineer(s) selected, the construction methods used, the equipment, materials 
and supplies to be used, and providers of such equipment, materials and 
supplies. 

iii. The Public Improvements may include, but are not necessarily limited to, the 
construction of a berm to relieve stormwater runoff or flooding to the north of 
the Property.   

iv. The City shall be solely responsible for the acquisition of all necessary 
permitting for the Work, as determined within its sole discretion, including but 
not necessarily limited to, acquisition of the floodplain permit expected to be 
required.  

v. In the event the City constructs a parking lot on the Property, such parking lot 
is intended for use only by the City or as otherwise allowed by the City for 
public purposes, and any such parking spaces or facilities erected on the 
Property shall not be available for use by Developer, including Developer’s 
owners, representatives, employees, or agents, or by Developer’s guests, 
customers, visitors, clients, invitees, tenants or the like, for access to 
Developer’s Property or for any other use of Developer’s Property. 

vi. All specifications for the Work shall be established, determined and 
documented in the Final Approved Infrastructure Plans.   

33

Item 4.



  3 of 8 

b. Construction Period:   
 

i. City’s performance of the Work shall commence upon completion and 
approval of the Final Infrastructure Plans, as approved by the City. 

ii. The Parties may agree upon a date certain by which the Work must be 
completed following execution of this Agreement; provided, that any such 
agreement is made by written amendment to this Agreement and executed 
by both Parties.  Notwithstanding any such amendment specifying a date 
certain for completion of the Work, the Parties herein acknowledge that the 
City’s completion of the Public Improvements by any date certain is 
expressly contingent upon timely delivery to the City of all engineering and 
other infrastructure plans required for the City to perform the Work.   

iii. Nothing contained in this paragraph or this Agreement shall be construed to 

restrict City’s right to construct the Public Improvements at any time prior 
to the estimated date shown hereinabove, or to continue constructing the 
Public Improvements after the estimated date shown hereinabove, so long 
as City is making substantial and continuing progress toward completion of 
the Public Improvements.   

iv. The time for completion of the Work shall be extended as necessary to 
accommodate delayed progress of the Public Improvements due to changes 
in work, any act or omissions of Developer or its employees, agents, or 
representatives that are contrary to this Agreement or any other cause that is 
not reasonably foreseen or beyond the control of City, its subcontractors, or 
suppliers including, but not limited to acts of God, acts of a government 
authority, natural or manmade disaster, delay in the transportation or 
shortages of materials or equipment, abnormal weather conditions or labor 

disputes. 

c. Site Access:  If at any time during the course of this Agreement, the City should 

need to access Developer’s Property for the purpose of completing the Work or 

otherwise satisfying any of its obligations under this Agreement, Developer agrees 

to provide the City, including its employees, workers, subcontractors, suppliers, 

and other authorized representatives, with reasonable access to Developer’s 

Property only to the extent necessary for completing the Work. 

3. Easements:  Developer agrees to execute any easements and/or rights-of-way that 
may be required in order for the City to complete the Work and, if applicable, to 
provide any ongoing maintenance as needed or otherwise appropriate.  Said easements 
will be provided by Developer to the City at no cost to the City.  The Parties 
additionally acknowledge and agree that City may need to acquire further easements 

and/or rights-of-way from Developer to allow for changes or extensions to the Work 
that may be deemed necessary or appropriate following execution of this Agreement.  
The Parties agree to negotiate in good faith to allow City to acquire such further 
easements from Developer as become necessary.  Should any easements and/or rights-
of-way under this Agreement not be in use or no longer be necessary for the Parties to 
satisfy all terms of this Agreement, the City agrees to take the reasonably necessary 
steps to vacate said easements and/or rights-of-way within ninety (90) days of being 
notified by Developer of its desire to vacate the easements and/or rights-of-way 
executed pursuant to this Agreement. The Parties agree and understand such vacation 

34

Item 4.



  4 of 8 

requires multiple steps, including a public hearing, a hearing and recommendation 
before the City’s Planning and Zoning Commission, and approval by the City Council 
through an Ordinance. 
 

4. Conflict of Interest:  No salaried director, officer or employee of the City, and no 

member of the City Council, shall have a financial interest, direct or indirect, in this 
Agreement.  A violation of this provision renders this Agreement null and void in its 
entirety.  The Parties expressly acknowledge that violation of any applicable federal 
law, federal regulation, state law, including specifically the provisions contained in 
Section 105.450 et seq., RSMo., or the Republic Municipal Code, committed in 

connection with execution of this Agreement or performance of any obligations under 
this Agreement, shall constitute grounds for immediate termination of this Agreement 
by the non-violating party. 

 

5. Entire Agreement: This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the Parties 

and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous written or oral agreements unless 
excluded herein. This Agreement may not be modified or amended other than in 
writing as agreed to by the Parties. 

 

6. Default by City and Termination:  If the City shall fail to timely and satisfactorily 
fulfill its obligations under this Agreement due to its own delay or any other cause 
attributable to and within the control of the City, become insolvent, or violate any of 
the covenants, agreements or stipulations contained in this Agreement, the Developer 
shall deliver written notice of such failure to City, and if such failure or violation is not 
cured within thirty (30) days thereafter (or such longer period of time as is reasonably 
necessary, provided the City begins to cure such failure or violation within such thirty 
(30) day period following receipt of notice from Developer and thereafter diligently 

pursues the same to completion without undue delay or interruption), the Developer 
shall then have the right to terminate this Agreement by giving at least five (5) days 
prior written notice to City of such termination, specifying the effective date thereof.  
The remedies specified herein above shall be the only remedy or recourse available to 
Developer in the event of a breach and Developer expressly acknowledges the City 
shall not be liable or otherwise responsible for any claimed damages due to delay, 
change in development plans or development timeline, loss of profits or anticipated 
income, or any other damages associated in any way with this Agreement. 

 

7. Default by the Developer and Termination: If Developer shall fail to effect the 
transfer of interest to the Property to the City or otherwise transfer a lesser interest than 
that provided for in the Deed of Dedication and Quitclaim Deed attached hereto, the 
City  shall have the right to (1) provide written notice of such failure to Developer and 
require Developer to cure the default within thirty (30) days of such notice; or 
alternatively, (2) terminate this Agreement by giving at least five (5) days prior written 
notice of such termination, specifying the effective date thereof.  If City elects to 
terminate the Agreement under the provisions of this paragraph, Developer shall be 
liable to the City for reimbursement of any and all actual costs the City may have 
incurred in commencing the Work required under this Agreement. 

 

8. Jurisdiction and Venue:  This Agreement shall be taken and deemed to have been 
fully executed and made by the Parties in the State of Missouri and thus is governed 
by the laws of the State of Missouri for all purposes and intents. Venue under this 

35

Item 4.



  5 of 8 

Agreement or any disputes that come from this Agreement shall be in the Circuit Court 
of Greene County, Missouri. 

 

9. Dispute:  In the event the City is the prevailing party in any litigation arising out of or 
relating to this Agreement, the City shall be entitled to recover from the Developer all 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses actually incurred by the City in enforcing its 
rights under this Agreement.  

 

10. Liability:  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create any liability on 
behalf of the City for any direct, special, indirect, liquidated, or consequential 
damages. Developer agrees that the type of work to be performed under this 
Agreement will cause damage to the Property, and Developer agrees that the City shall 
not be liable for any damages caused to the Property outside of that necessary to 
complete the Public Improvements contemplated by this Agreement. 

 

11. Independent Contractor: The Parties to this Agreement are separate and independent 

from each other. This Agreement shall not be construed as creating any type of joint 
venture or partnership between the Parties. 

 

12. Execution:  The Parties agree that signatures transmitted by facsimile or scanned and 
emailed shall have the legal effect of original signatures, unless otherwise required by 
state or local law, including requirements for recording with the County Clerk.  In 
addition to facsimile or scanned and email signatures, this Agreement may be executed 
by the Parties in accordance with the applicable version of the Uniform Electronic 
Transactions Act (“UETA”) and the Electronic Signatures in Global and National 
Commerce Act (“ESIGN”).  The Parties hereto agree to conduct transactions by 
electronic means and hereby affirmatively consent to use electronic records to 

memorialize and execute this Agreement and any alterations thereto. At the request 
of any party, the Parties shall promptly exchange executed original counterparts of this 
Agreement or any amendment. 

 

13. Survival:  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties 

hereto and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns as 
provided in this Agreement. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the rights and 
benefits afforded Developer under this Agreement shall run with the Property and shall 
be enforceable by and for the benefit of any and all successor owners of the Property 
without further consideration to or consent by the City. The Parties acknowledge and 
agree that at the request of any Party, a memorandum of this Agreement shall be duly 
executed by the Parties and recorded in the real estate records of Greene County, 
Missouri; provided, however, this Agreement shall be binding and enforceable as 
between the City and any current or future owner of the Property without recording 

thereof. 
 

14. Headings:  The headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and 
shall not limit or otherwise affect the meaning thereof. 

 

15. Whereas Clauses:  The “Whereas” clauses stated above are incorporated herein by 
reference. 

 

36

Item 4.



  6 of 8 

16. Assignment: This Agreement may not be assigned by any Party without the prior 
written consent of the other Parties. 

 

17. Sovereign Immunity: In no event shall any language or requirement in this Agreement 

be construed as or constitute a waiver or limitation of the City’s defenses regarding 
sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, or official immunity under federal or 
state constitutions, statutes, and/or laws. 

 

18. Severability Clause:  A determination of invalidity or unconstitutionality by a court 
of competent jurisdiction of any clause, sentence, paragraph, section, or part, of this 
Agreement shall not affect the validity of the remaining parts to this Agreement. 

 

19. Contingent Upon Funds and Approval:  This Agreement is expressly subject to and 
conditioned upon approval, by ordinance, of the City Council, and additionally 

subject to the appropriation of adequate funds from the City Council.  Developer shall 
have no right of action against the City in the event the City is unable to perform its 
obligations under this Agreement as the result of the City Council’s refusal to approve 
of this Agreement or refusal to appropriate the necessary funds. 

 

20. Supplemental Agreements/Additional Action:  The Parties agree to cooperate fully, 
to execute any supplemental agreements, and to take all additional actions that may 
be reasonably necessary or appropriate to give full force and effect to the basic terms 
and intent of this Agreement. 

 

21. Waiver:  The waiver by one Party of any provision or breach of this Agreement shall 
not be deemed a waiver of any other provision or breach of this Agreement. 

 

22. Contract Documents:  The Agreement shall consist of the following: 

a. This Agreement; 

b. Exhibit 1 – Deed of Dedication with Legal Description and Survey; 

c. Exhibit 2 – Quit Claim Deed with Legal Description and Survey; and 

d. Any properly executed amendments or addendums. 

23. Notices:  Any notice, request or demand provided for in this Agreement shall be 
deemed to have been given when the same shall have been personally delivered to the 
following offices or when notice is received after being deposited in the United States 
Mail, Registered or Certified, with postage thereon prepaid as follows:  

 
To City:  City of Republic, Missouri 

   Attn: City Administrator 

   213 North Main Street 

   Republic, Missouri 65738 

 

To Developer:   The Empire District Electric Company 

d/b/a Liberty Utilities 

Attn:  Adam Greek 

3400 South Kodiak Road 

Joplin, MO 64804    

37

Item 4.



  7 of 8 

 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.  SIGNATURES 

APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE, Page 8 of 8] 
 

 
  

38

Item 4.



  8 of 8 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, having read all terms and conditions contained herein above and 

with the intent to be legally bound to and by them, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be 

executed as of the day and year first above written. 

 

THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC 

COMPANY, D/B/A LIBERTY 

UTILITIES, by: 

 
 
 
__________________________________ 
(Signature) 

 
__________________________________ 
(Printed Name) 
 
__________________________________ 
(Title) 
 

CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, by: 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
David Cameron, City Administrator 

 

Approved as to Finance/Budget: 

 

 

__________________________________ 
Bob Ford, Finance Director 

 

 

Approved as to Form: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney 
 

 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

39

Item 4.



1 of 2 

DEED OF DEDICATION 

THIS DEED, made on the _____ day of ______________________________ 2024, between 
Empire District Electric Company (aka Liberty Utilities), hereinafter called “Grantor”, and the City of 
Republic, Missouri, a municipal corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being 
duly created, organized, and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri, whose primary address is 
4221 S. Wilson’s Creek Boulevard, Republic, Missouri, 65738, hereinafter called “Grantee”. 

WITNESSETH: 

That for and in consideration of the sum of One Dollar ($1.00), and other good and valuable 
considerations, the receipt of which are hereby acknowledged, Grantor hereby dedicates to Grantee, 
including its successors, assigns, legal representatives and to its agents, servants and employees, for the 
benefit of the public, forever, the following described property, to wit: 

SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT “A” FOR LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND EXHIBIT “B” FOR SURVEY. 

Said dedication shall be for the purpose of permitting Grantee to construct and forever maintain 
for public use thereon, through, over, under and across said property, together with all necessary and 
convenient appurtenances thereto, which may include, but not necessarily be limited to, streets, storm 
drainage features and facilities, pedestrian ways, franchised public utilities and telecommunication 
services; and to use and maintain the same.  The dedication of the above-described property is with the 
free consent and in accordance with the desire of the undersigned owners, proprietors and trustees, if 
any.  The dedication constitutes an irrevocable conveyance of fee simple interest in the property.   

Acceptance of this conveyance by Grantee shall not impose upon Grantee any obligation for the 
opening, widening, installation, improvement or maintenance of the above-described property for any 
purpose, which obligation shall arise, if at all, only by separate action of Grantee.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has hereunto caused this instrument to be executed the day and 
year first above written. 

__________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Signature Signature 

__________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Name and Office Name and Office 

Developer Agreement Exhibit 1

40

Item 4.



2 of 2 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, said Grantor(s) has/have executed this instrument on the date first above 

written. 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 
     ) ss. 
COUNTY OF _______________ ) 
 
 On this ______ day of________________________, 2024, before me personally appeared 
___________________________ (name), _____________________________ (title), known to me to be 
the person(s) described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that 
he/she/they was/were duly authorized by said _____________________ to execute the same as 
his/her/their free act and deed. 

 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal at my office 

in __________________, Missouri the day and year first above written. 
 

 
My term expires:____________________  /s/ _________________________________ 
        Notary Public 

41

Item 4.



42

Item 4.



43

Item 4.



1 of 2 

QUIT CLAIM DEED 

THIS DEED, made on the _____ day of ______________________________ 2024, between 
Empire District Electric Company (aka Liberty Utilities), hereinafter called “Grantor”, and the City of 
Republic, Missouri, a municipal corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being 
duly created, organized, and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri, whose primary address is 
4221 S. Wilson’s Creek Boulevard, Republic, Missouri, 65738, hereinafter called “Grantee”. 

WITNESSETH: 

That for and in consideration of the sum of One Dollar ($1.00), and other good and valuable 
considerations, the receipt of which are hereby acknowledged, Grantor hereby does, by these presents, 
remise, release and forever quit claim unto the said Grantee, including its successors, assigns, legal 
representatives and to its agents, servants and employees, for the benefit of the public, the following 
described property, to wit: 

SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT “A” FOR LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND EXHIBIT “B” FOR SURVEY. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the same with all rights, immunities, privileges and appurtenances 
thereto belonging, unto the said Grantee and successors and assigns forever, so that neither the said 
Grantor nor its successors and assigns, nor any other person or persons for it or in its name or on its behalf, 
shall or will hereafter claim or demand any right or title to the aforesaid premises or any part thereof, but 
they, and every one of them shall by these presents be excluded and forever barred 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has hereunto caused this instrument to be executed the day and 
year first above written. 

__________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Signature Signature 

__________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Name and Office Name and Office 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, said Grantor(s) has/have executed this instrument on the date first above 
written. 

Developer Agreement Exhibit 2

44

Item 4.



2 of 2 
 

STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 
     ) ss. 
COUNTY OF _______________ ) 
 
 On this ______ day of________________________, 2024, before me personally appeared 
___________________________ (name), _____________________________ (title), known to me to be 
the person(s) described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that 
he/she/they was/were duly authorized by said _____________________ to execute the same as 
his/her/their free act and deed. 

 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal at my office 

in __________________, Missouri the day and year first above written. 
 

 
My term expires:____________________  /s/ _________________________________ 
        Notary Public 

 

45

Item 4.



46

Item 4.



47

Item 4.



 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 24-R-44 A Resolution of the City Council Awarding the Bid for the Shuyler 
Creek Trail Extension to JD Wallace Contracting, LLC. 

Submitted By: Karen Haynes, Community Development Director 

Date: October 01, 2024 
 

Issue Statement 

The Community Development Department is requesting approval to award the Construction Contract of 

the Shuyler Creek Trail to JD Wallace Contracting, LLC.   

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The Community Development Department solicited Bids for the construction of the Shuyler Creek Trail 

in August 2024, receiving a Bid from JD Wallace Contracting, LLC in the amount of $2,091,982.16 and a 

Bid from Radmacher Brothers Excavating Co, Inc. in the amount of $2,111,831.49.  The City and MODOT 

reviewed the Bids as part of the Local Public Agency (LPA) process; we received MODOT’s Concurrence 

on September 10, 2024 for the award of the Contract to the low Bidder, JD Wallace Contracting, LLC.   

 

The Shuyler Creek Trail is funded through the award of Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) and 

the City’s Capital Improvement Sales Tax (CIST).  The Construction Contract will have a not-to-exceed 

amount of $2,091,982.16.  

 

Construction of the Shuyler Creek Trail is expected to commence this Fall, with completion scheduled by 

May 01, 2025. 

 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval.   

48

Item 5.



RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-44 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-44 1  

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AWARDING THE BID FOR THE SHUYLER CREEK TRAIL EXTENSION 
(STBG-6900) (813) WORK TO JD WALLACE CONTRACTING, LLC 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and Charter 

City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the laws of the 

State of Missouri; and 

 
WHEREAS, on or about August 6, 2024, the City published an Invitation for Bids (“IFB”) for 

construction work on the Shuyler Creek Trail, including removal and connection to the existing trail, 
installation of 1,872 square yards of concrete trail improvements, 5,989 square yards of asphalt trail 
improvements, necessary storm infrastructure improvements, and a rectangular rapid flashing beacon 
(the “Project”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the City received two (2) bids in response to its IFB; and 
 
WHEREAS, JD Wallace Contracting, LLC (“JD Wallace”) submitted the lowest of the two (2) bids 

received, estimating its total cost for the Project to be $2,091,982.16; and  
 
WHEREAS, after hearing presentation and recommendations by City staff, the City Council 

desires to accept the submission from JD Wallace, as it as it appears to demonstrate the necessary 
qualifications for a responsible bid and is the lowest estimated cost to the City. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1.  The submitted bid from JD Wallace Contracting, LLC, attached as “Exhibit 1” and 

expressly incorporated herein, is accepted for the Project at the estimated cost(s) 

shown thereon, but in no event to exceed a total of $2,091,982.16 without 

separate, additional approval from Council. 

 
Section 2.   The City Administrator, or their designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to 

take the necessary steps to execute this Resolution. 

 

Section 3.  The whereas clauses are specifically incorporated herein by reference.  

 

Section 4.  This Resolution shall take effect after passage as provided by law.  

 
PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 

this __________ day of __________________, 2024. 

 

      __________________________________________ 

Attest:                    Eric Franklin, Mayor 

 

____________________________________ 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

49

Item 5.



RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-44 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-44 2  

 

Approved as to Form:   

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 
 
Final Passage and Vote: 

 

 
 

50

Item 5.



EXHIBIT 1

51

Item 5.



52

Item 5.



53

Item 5.



54

Item 5.



55

Item 5.



56

Item 5.



57

Item 5.



58

Item 5.



59

Item 5.



60

Item 5.



61

Item 5.



62

Item 5.



63

Item 5.



64

Item 5.



65

Item 5.



66

Item 5.



67

Item 5.



68

Item 5.



69

Item 5.



70

Item 5.



71

Item 5.



72

Item 5.



73

Item 5.


	Top
	Item 1.	min
	9-10-24 Council Minutes_Final

	Item 2.	2025 Council Meetings
	ITEM-Staff-9de9b1f4f5134d68a80ec7a583cc721c (17) (1)
	24-RES-Council Meeting Dates 2025_MEM FINAL
	2025 Meeting Dates-final

	Item 3.	IGA with MHTC on mm underpass/multi-use trail
	MODOT Staff Report (07-16-24)
	24-ORD-XX - Authorizing Execution of IGA with MHTC for underpass trail_MEM FINAL
	2024-03-83590 - ATTACHMENT 1 to Ordinance - MEM labeled

	Item 4.	Liberty developer agreement
	Liberty Utilities DA Staff Report (09-10-24)
	24-ORD-XX - Approving Developer Agreement with Empire_MEM FINAL
	Developer Agreement_Liberty Utilities_Morris Park stormwater FINAL - with City attorney replies to BUILDS

	Item 5.	SCT Bid Award
	SCT Contract Staff Report (10-01-24)
	24-R- Awarding Bid for Trail to JD Wallace_MEM FINAL
	EX 1 to RESOLUTION Awarding shuyler trail work to JD Wallace Bid Documents

	Bottom

